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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ARVIND ENVISOLLIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arvind Envisol Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the profit and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’'s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not inciude the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financlia! statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
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financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materiai misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internai financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that inciudes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: :

« [Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,. or the override
of internat control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the crcumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*
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+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. '

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease Lo continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
reguiation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s repost) Order,2016 ("The Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India In terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies act,2013,we give

in the "Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order,to the
extent appiicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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¢) The Baiance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow deait with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaidfinancialstatements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A",

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has does not have any pending litigation which would affect its financial
position;

i, The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeabile losses;

iii.  There were no armounts which were required to be transferrad to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417?]>

(R Bl

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
April 29, 2019
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Envisol Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
{1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arvind Envisol
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
reqguired under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectivenass. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting of the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent fimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. AlsQ,
projections of any evaluation of the internal finandial controis over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the -degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controi stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India,

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No. 110417wW

Chst{h- Sle-

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
Aprit 29, 2019
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ANNEXURE "B’ TC THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Envisol Limited of even date)

I,

Vi,

vil.

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets;

(a)
®

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets
were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification,

The company has no immovable properties. Consequently, requirements of Clause (i)
{c) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between
the physical stocks and the book records were not material having regard to the size
of the Company, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to four bodies corporate, covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per
stipulations.

There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of
foans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at March 31, 2019 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Grder
are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Thus, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicabie to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(@)

(b)

The Company has generaily been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues appilicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable. in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
Staie Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payabie except as stated below.
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viii,

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

xiv.

XV,

Xvi.

Statutory Due Rs. In lacs
Professional Tax 2.63.

(¢) There are no disputed amounts outstanding as at March 31, 2019.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defauited in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the vear.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not paid any managerial remuneration.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable,
for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicabie to the Company.

The Company is not reguired to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

For Sorab S. Enginecer & Co.
Chartered Acccuntants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417W

crrille G b

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
April 29, 2019



Arvind Envisol Limited
CIN : U29100G.2008PLC053226
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Particuiars Notes Asat Asat
Mar 31,2019 Mar 31,2018
Rsin Lacs Rs in Lacs
ASSETS
L. Non-current assets
(a} Property, plant and equipment 5 327.04 281.26
(b} Capital Work is Progress 89.85 -
{c} Intangible assets [ 382.20 . $04.72
(d) Intangible assets under development 6 13.28 15.76
(e) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 -
(i) Investmenis 7 14586 [36.42
(ii) Loans 7 7,500.00 -
(i) Other financiaf assets 7 17.46 14.51
(D) Deferred tax Assets (net) 26 23.86 -
Total non-current assets 8,499.55 952.67

ILCurrent assets
(a) Inventories 9 1.488.47 2,661.53

{b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 7 9,502.80 12,190.65
(1i} Cash and cash equivalents 7 108.99 24,04
{iii) Bank balance other thar (ii} above 7 25.56 24.07
(iv) Loans 7 477.16 6,317.15
(v) Others financial assets 7 116.12 3918
(e) Current tax assets (net) jai] - 3.1
{d) Other current assets g 1,926.75 -3,594.94
Total current assefs 14,045.85 24,854.67
Total Assets : 22,545.40 ' 25807.34
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity '
Equity share capital 1t 21.00 2100
Other equity iz 8,117.37 3,362.66
Total equity 8,138,37 3,383.66
LIABILITIES
L Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Hiabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 37.74 5i.i4
{if) Other financial liabilities 13 - 2.03
{b} Long-term provisions 14 58.61 24.60
(e} Deferred tax liabilities (net) 26 - 100.13
Total non-current liabilities 96,35 177.90
IL.Current liabilities
(a) Finangial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 13 1,375.73 7,308.71
< (i) Trade payables 13
Total cutstanding dues of micro
enterprises and sinall enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and sgmall 6,459.38 9,130.10
enferprises )
{iii} Gther financiai liabilities 13 2,42096 2,284.58
{b} Other current liabilities 15 2,591.29 3,485,53
(c} Short-term provisions 14 5.76 36.86
(d) Current {ax liabilities (nef) 957.56 -
Total current liabifities ’ 14,310.68 22,245.78
Total equity and liabilities 22,545.40 25,807.34
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per aur report of even date
For Soral S, Engineer & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Arvind Envisgl
Chartered Accountanis Limited e 2
Firm Regiggation Yq 110417W o L s Oyl ‘
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B. esh J Yadav Naishadh Parikh
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 100892 BIN: 65125502 DIN: 00009314
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

April 29,2019 April 29, 2019 April 29,2019



Arvind Envisol Limited
CIN : U29100GJ2008PLC053226
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Notes Year ended Year cnded
Mar 31,2019 Mar 31,2018
Rs in Lacs Rs in Lacs
INCOME
(a) Revenue from operations
(i) Sale of Products 17 23,092.78 15,678.69
{ii)Sale of Services 17 2,712.64 928.62
{iif)Operating Income. 17 843.36 548,07
Revenue frem operations 26,648.78 17,155.38
(b) Other income 18 1,940,77 220.84
TOTAL REVENUE (1) 28,589.55 _ 17,376.22
EXPENSES
{a)Cost of raw materials and accessories consumed 19 107.34 17833
(b)Purchase of stock-in-trade 20 11,586.84 10,318.40
(c)Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- 21 684.07 (1,536.75)
progress and stock-in-trade .
(d)Project Expenses 800.77 293.59
(e)Employee benefits expense 22 3,787.09 3,022.24
(f)Finance costs 23 1,577.16 32211
{g)Depreciation and amottisation expense 24 172.13 170.80
(h)Other expenses ! 25 3,200.15 1,363,17
TOTAL EXPENSES (IT) 21,915.55 14,131.8%
Profit before exceptional items and tax (FI)=([-IT) 6,674.00 3,244.33

‘Exceptional items (V) - -

Profit before tax (V) = (TT-LV) 6,674.00 3,244,33
Tax expensc
(a}Current tax 26 1,981.93 1.113.04
(b)Short Provisien of tax for earlier years 26 3955 62.26
(¢)Deferred tax (Credit) / Charge’ 26 (117.64) 97.94
Total tax expense (VE) 1,903.84 1,273.24
Profit for the year {V11) = (V-¥I) -4,770.16 1,971.09

Other comprehensive income
A. Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains / {losses) on defined benefit plans {21 83%) 1.38
Income tax effect 6.35 (0.48)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in ([5.45) 0.90
subsequent periods
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VIIT) {15.45) 0.96
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VII+VIII) 4,754.71 1,971.99

Earning per equity share [nominal value per share Rs. 10/- (March 31,

201 8: Rs.i0/-)] .
Basic 2,271.50 938.61
Difuted 2,271.50 938.61

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per aur report of even date

For Sorab 8. Engineer & Co, Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of Arvind Envisol Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.1104 17w 7 =
j ﬂ \ * D L\ L L"’*‘“‘”"‘”“”‘"ﬁ‘”'g
Ol - Sortm s %
2 =
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B, esh J Yaday Naishadh Parikh
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 100892 DIN: 05125502 DIN: (00069314
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad Ahmedabad
April 29,2019 April 29, 201% April 29, 2019
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Arvind Enyisol Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 34, 2019

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{Rs. in La¢s) {Rs. in Lacs)
A Operating activities
Profit/{Loss) Before taxation 6,674.00 3,244,33
Adjustments o reconcile profit before fax to net cash flows;
Depreciation / Amort:zatton 17213 170,80
Interest Income (1,894.51) {117.12)
Financial guarantee conymission (11.38) (2.01)
Pravision for non moving inventory 1.04 )
Sundry credit balances written back - {5.63)
Sundry Debits Written Off (Net} 23.30 -
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost 1,577.16 322,11
Property, Plant & Equipnient written OfF - 1.47
Allowance for deubiful Debis 38.61 2i0.41
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment/Intangible assets 164 6.57
Exchange rate Loss 353 47 -
62.46 586.60
Operating Profit before Working Capitat Changes 6,736,46 3,830.93
Working Capital Changes:
{Increase)/Decrease in [nventories 1,172.02 {1,570.71)
Increase/{Decrease) in trade payables (2.670.72) 8,202.64
Increase/{Decrease) in other curmrent/non current financial liabilities (1.478.89) {13.10
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (894.29) 6,421.70
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (18.89) 23.08
{Increase}/Decrease in trade receivables 2,22594 (9,498,350}
(Increase)/Decrease in other current/non current fiancial zssets (79.60) 741t
(Increase)Decrease in other current/non current assets 1.668.19 (4,386.18)
Net Changes in Working Capital 323.81 (1,146.96)
Cash Generated from Operations 7,060.27 268397
Direet Taxes paid (Met of Income Tax refund) (1.060.81) {1,322.68) !
Net Cash (rom Operaling Activitics 5,.999.46 1,361.29
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipmenis/intangible assets (188.99) (94.10}
Sale of property, ptant & equipments 3.39 9.27
Purchase of Investments (S.44) (136.42)
Changes in Loans given {1,860.01) {4.817.15)
Changes in other bank balances not considered 2s cash amd cash (1.49) 401:9¢
equivalents
Interest Income . 1,894.22 332.37
Net cash flow from [nvesling Activitics 37.88 {4,304.04}
€ Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment in long term Botrowings (12.30) 3361
Repayment in short term horrowings (5,586.45) 3,994.95
Interest and Other Bon-owihg Cost Paid (353.64} (1,084.78)
Net Cash low from Financing Activilies {5.952,39) 2.943.78
Net Increase/{Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 84,95 1,03
Cash & Cash equivatent at the beginning of the year 2404 23.0%
Cash & Cash equivalent ai the end of the year 108,99 24.04
Reconciliation of Cash and ¢ash equivalents :
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 35,2018
(Rs, in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)} .
Casht and cash equivalents comprise of: {Note 7)
Cash on Hand o 0.05
Balances with Banks 108,28 23.99
Cash anﬂ;rasli equivalents 108,99 24.04
Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Tod AS 7 on cash flow under € ies (Indiza A Standards) Rules, 2015 (a5 amended)
.
Naon Cash Changes
X Asat dI:'ai: valt:e Avat
. P - . c . adjusiment on s 4l
Particulars of liabilities arising [rom financing activity Note MNo. Mazl;;:lhsll, Net cash lows Other changes * interest free March 31,2019
inter corporate
deposits
Borrowings ¢
L.ong term borrowings 13 (a) 53.46 (12.30) - - 5L.16
Shert teim barrowings 13(a) 7.308.71 {5,432.98) - 1,875.73
Interest acctued on berrowings 13 {c} 432 (1.32) 1,227.84 - 1,227.34
Total 7,376.49 {5449.60) £,227.84 - 3,154.73

* The same relates to amount tharged in statement of profit and loss.

The accompanying notes are an wnitegral part of the financial statements.

Notes.

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect methad as set outin Indian Accounting Standard ¢Ind AS 7) statement of cash fows.
2 Purchase of property, plant & equipment / intangible assets include movement of capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

during the year.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1.

2.

Corporate Information

Arvind Envisol Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India. The company was
incorporated on 1ih March, 2008. The address of company's registered office is Arvind Limited
Premises, Naroda Road, Ahmedabad-380 025, The Company has also diversified in other water
and waste water related businesses like undertaking operation and maintenance contracts and

trading in water treatment items like membranes and chemicals etc.

Over last seven years of our existence, we have gained expertise in EPC contracts, O&M and
trading in

water treatment segment. We intend to continue our operations in foreseeable future, at least
for the next five years.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(*Ind AS”) as issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
followings:

o Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments);

o Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value;

e Assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to sell;

s Share based payments; .

e Defined benefit plans ~ plan assets measured at fair value;

e Value in Use
In addition, the carrying values of recognised assets and liabilities designated as hedged items
in fair value hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to record
changes in the fair values attributable to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge
relationships.

2.3 Rounding of amounts

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“INR”} and all values are rounded to
the nearest crore as per the requirement of Schedule 111, except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its

financial statements consistently to all the periods presented, including the preparation of the
opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 being the date of transition to Ind AS:



3.1.Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabifity is current when:
o It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
o Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
¢ There is no unconditional right to defer.the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is
not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

3.2.Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual resuits
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reporting date.

3.3.Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controliing interests in the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the non-controliing



the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of

the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination. is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the
items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through
goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does
not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Business Combination under Common Control

A business combination involving entities or businesses under common control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business combination and the control is
not transitory. The transactions between entities under common control are specificaily
covered by Ind AS 103. Such transactions are accounted for using the pooling-of-interest
method. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recognised at their carrying
amounts of the parent entity’s consolidated financial statements with the exception of certain
income tax and deferred tax assets. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or
recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise
accounting policies. The components of equity of the acquired companies are added to the
same components within the Company’s equity. The difference, if any, between the amounts
recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other
assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and
is presented separately from other capital reserves. The Company’s shares issued in
consideration for the acquired companies are recognized from the moment the acquired
companies are included in these financial statements and the financial statements of the
commonly controlled entities would be combined, retrospectively, as if the transaction had
occurred at the beginning of the earliest reporting period presented. However, the prior year
comparative information is only adjusted for periods during which entities were under
common control,

3.4.Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is Indian Rupee.



Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s-functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on transiation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are.
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

3.5.Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liahility takes place either:
» In the principal market for the asset or liability or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liahility.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. :

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.



» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is uncbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such

as asset held for sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion
with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether

-the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes,

« Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

e Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

« Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date

of transition
» Investment properties
+ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

3.6.Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific



interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values Irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

> Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12
Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

> Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share - based payments arrangements of the Company entered into
to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

> Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

> Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuatmn does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss or OCI, as appropriate,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity Is not re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net -assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, If there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment iosses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from



useful lives and depreciates them accordingly and de-recognises the replaced parts from
Property, plant and equipment. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria
for a provision are met. ‘

The Company adjusts exchange differences arising on translation difference / settlement of
long-term foreign currency monetary items outstanding as at March 31, 2016, pertaining to
the acquisition of a depreciable asset, to the cost of asset and depreciates the same over the
remaining life of the asset.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the period tilf such assets are ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready
for their intended use at the balance sheet date. '

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when

the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items {Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful
life or over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less,

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the
period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.7.Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for
whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.



Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Finance
leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term,
the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease

term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term except the case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect
and lease expense is accounted in such case by actual rent for the period.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease except the case
where incremental lease reflects infiationary effect and lease income is accounted in such
case by actual rent for the period. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

3.8.Borrowing cost
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. Where funds are borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs
incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance a
project, the income generated from such current investments is deducted from the total
¢ capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project form part of general
borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable



to relevant general borrowings of the company during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss during the extended periods when the active
development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

3.9.Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that
is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the property are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit orloss as incurred.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on
an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a
valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or on permanently withdrawal from use
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.
Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories are at
carrying amount of the property transferred.

Depreciation on Investment property is provided on the straight line method over useful lives
of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013

3.10.Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Iinitial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed

for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite



useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and i.oss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

Software is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years or License Period
whichever is lower and Patent/Knowhow is amortized over its useful validity period. Website
is amortized over 5 years.

3.11.Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Work-in-progress, Finished goods and Stock-in-trade are valued
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. However, Raw material and other items held for
use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

» Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first
out basis.

* Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity,
but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

s Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted

average basis.

All other inventories of stores, consumables, project material at site are valued at cost. The
stock of waste is valued at net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.12.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell



and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing vaiue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are taken into. account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a iong-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for a property previcusly revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions. used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
~ the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unfess the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a

revaluation increase.
3.13.Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods, traded goods and
related services. The Company is also engaged in construction / job work contracts.

Effective 01 April 2018, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS
115) -‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ using the cumulative catch-up transition
method, applied to contracts that were not completed as on the transition date i.e. 01 April
2018. Accordingly, the comparative amounts of revenue and the corresponding contract
assets / liabilities have not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind-AS
115 was insignificant.

L



Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services,

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one
year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of

money.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of

the following criteria is met:
The customer simuitaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the

Company's performance as the Group performs; or
The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the

asset is created or enhanced; or
The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the

Company and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance compieted to
date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from salfe of products and services are recognised at a time on which the
performance obligation is satisfied except Revenue from real estate property development
where in revenue is recognised over the time from the financial year in which the agreement
to sell or application forms (containing salient terms of agreement to sell) is executed, The
period over which revenue is recognised is based on entity’s right to payment for performance
completed. In determining whether an entity has right to payment, the entity shall consider
whether it would have an enforceable right to demand or retain payment for performance
completed to date if the contract were to be terminated before completion for reasons other
than entity’s failure to perform as per the terms of the contract.

The revenue recognition of Construction / Job Work Contract under development requires
forecasts to be made of total budgeted costs with the outcomes of underlying construction
contracts, which further require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work
scopes and other payments to the extent they are prohable and they are capable of being
reliably measured. However, where the total project cost is estimated to exceed total
revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract asset while invoicing in excess of
revenues are classified as contract liabiiities.

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
discounts, volume rebates etc. and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government {other than excise duty). Excise duty is a liability of the manufacturer which
forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since
the recovery of excise duty flows to Company on its own account, revenue includes excise

duty.



Export Incentive
Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Interest Income

Interest income from debt instruments are recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR)
and accrued on timely basis. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Dividend Income
Dividend Income from Investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive is
established which is generally occur when the shareholders approve the dividend.

Profit or [oss on sale of Investments

Profit or Loss on sale of investments are recorded on transfer of title from the Company, and
is determined as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment and
other incidental expenses.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms except the case where incremental lease reflects
inflationary effect and rentai income is accounted in such case by actual rent for the period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for to the extent the Company is reasonably certain of their

ultimate collection.
3.14.Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are
recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are



recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial assets

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

« Financial assets at amortised cost

» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

o Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amortised cost :
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI), However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL.



In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’), The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments:

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are heid for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
stch election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then-all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts. from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the P&L

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and eithar (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.



(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financia!l liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, [osses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.,

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification | classification

Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
" | Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.,

FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
Cost new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated

based on the new gross carrying amount.
Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair value Is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR
due to reclassification.

FVOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortised

cost.,

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is
required. o

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date.

(v)Impairment of financial assets



In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets

and credit risk exposure:

¢ Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

s Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FEVTOCI

« Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17

* Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and
Ind AS 18

* Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

¢ Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

* Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing
component

= Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and

s All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financia! instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:
o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, cali and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial



instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrurment

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
in a separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet, The allowance reduces the
net carrying-amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

¢ Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a
provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already
reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its
value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’

in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilitles are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described

' below:
C |

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss



Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or less. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and. loss.

Loans and Borrowings _

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the FIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require
a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially- as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS
109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

(iif) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.



c) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
options, cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks
and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised
in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or
treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
o Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
» Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is
either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment
o Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally desi'gnates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described
below:

(i} Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and
no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.



If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable
to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss
recognised in profit and loss.

(ii)Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign
currency risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward
commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective
portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the
ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or
expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no lenger meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

(iii) Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item
that is accounted for as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way similar to
cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge are recognised as OCI while any gains or losses relating to the
ineffective portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the
foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment).

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

3.15.Cash and cash equivalent



Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet includes cash on hand, at banks and short-
term deposits with 2 maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. :

For the purpose of the cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash, short-
term deposits, as defined above, other short-term and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value adjusted for outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. Bank
Overdrafts are shown within Borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

3.16.Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss on a systematic basis over the
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When
the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset. :

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are
recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in
a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

3.17.Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax :

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.



Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences assoclated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are-measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax Is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively, -

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the



specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews such tax credit
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax
includes MAT tax credit.

3.18.Employee Benefits

a)

b)

©)

d)

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term
compensated absences, awards, exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are
recognised in the pericd in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme,
employees’ state insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined
contribution plans, The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
paid/payable under such schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes
is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii)Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes
are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Staternent of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.

Other long term employment benefits:

The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans.

The present value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using

the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded

plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the

obligation on the net basis.

Termination Benefits : _
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are
recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.



3.19.Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year adjusted for the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares}. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the standalone
financial statements by the Board of Directors,

3.20.Dividend

The Company recognises a liability (including tax thereon) to make cash or non-cash
distributions to equity shareholders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and
the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair
value re-measurement recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the
liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

3.21.Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (lega!l or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed from third parties,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.



If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence wiil
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable,

3.22.Non-current assets held for sale/ distribution to owners and discontinued
operations

The Company classifies non-current assets (or disposal group) as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use.
Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not
abandoned, The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:
e The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,
* An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if
applicable),
e The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation
to its current fair value,
e The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification , and
¢ Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the
fair value less costs to seil. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented
separately in the balarnce sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the assets to fair
value less cost to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases jn the fair value less
cost to selfl of an assets but not in excess of the cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised, A gain or loss previously not recognised by the date of sale of the non current
assets is recognised on the date of de-recognition.
5

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/
distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.



A discontinued operation qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity
that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:
* Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
e Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations; or
+ Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are
presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the
statement of profit and loss. '

3.24 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internat reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. Refer Note 30 for the segment information presented.



4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

4.1.Significant judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

Finance lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has entered into leases whereby it has taken land on lease. The Company has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term constituting a major part of the economic life of the property and the fair
value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties and accounts for the contracts as finance leases.

Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner
is acting as a principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary
obligation for pricing latitude and exposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale
of goods. The Company has concluded that certain arrangements are on principal to agent
basis where its business partner is acting as an agent. Hence, sale of goods to its business
partner is recognised once they are sold to the end customer,

4.2.Estimates and assumption .

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below,
The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur. ' 4

Defined benefit plans ‘
The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its iong-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.



The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive
credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 32.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 36 for further disclosures.

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced
by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverabie
amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical experience.
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into homogeneous groups and
assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible. The carrying amount of allowance for
doubtful debts is Rs. 284.26 Lacs (March 31, 2017 : Rs. 92.24 Lacs).

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has Rs. Nil {(March 31, 2017 : Rs. 172.17 Lacs) of tax credits carried forward.
These credits expire in 15 years. The Company has taxable temporary difference and tax
planning opportunities available that could partly support the recognition of these credits as
deferred tax assets, On this basis, the Company has determined that it can recognise deferred
tax assets on the tax credits carried forward.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 26.

Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.10 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of

Intangible assets has been disclosed in Note 6.



Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 3.6 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying
value of Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes,
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Arvind Envisol Limited
CIN : U29100GJ2008PLC053226
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6 : Intangible assets

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Computer Software Patent & Technical Total Intangible assets
knowhow under

development
Gross Carrying Amount
As at April 1,2017 19.34 869.74 889.08 9.98
Additions 0.20 - 0.20 5.78
Deductions - - - -
As at March 31,2018 19,54 869.74 8§89.28 15.76
Additions 0.27 3.98 4.25
Deductions - . 2.48
As at March 31, 2019 19.81 §73.72 893.53 13.28
Amortisation and Empairment
As at April 1, 2017 8.76 24845 257.21 -
Amortisation for the Year 1,26 126.06 127.35 -
Deductions - - - -
As at March 31,2018 10.05 374.51 384.56 -
Amortisation for the Year 2.33 124.44 126.77 -
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2019 12.38 498.95 511.33 -
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2019 7.43 374.77 382,20 13.28
Asat March 31, 2018 9.49 495.23 504.72 15.76
As at April 1,2017 10.58 621.29 631.87 9.98




Arvind Envisol Limited
CIN : U2H100GJ2008P1.C053226
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Financial assets
7 {a) Investments

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at Mareh 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Non-current investment
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary
Unguoted
Arvind Envisol PLC (Fthiopia)* 145.86 134.13
4,554 (31st March 2018: 4554) shares
Total equity Investments 145.86 134.13
Share Application Money - 2.29
Total non-current investments 145.86 136.42

Total current investments -

* Increase in the cost of investment during the period includes recognition of notional commission on fair valuation of financial

guarantee provided for loan taken by subsidiary. The same is detailed below :

Rs. in Lacs
Subsidia Nature of transaaction Impact of notional commission on fair valuation of
i 2018-19 2017-18
Arvind Envisol PLC (Ethiopia)* Financial guarantee given 11.73 7.67
7 {(b) Trade receivables
Particulars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs, in Lacs
Current
Unsecured, considered good 9,602.80 12,190.65
Credit Impaired 300.33 284.26
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (300.33) (284.26)
Total Trade and other receivables 9,902.80 12,190.65
Receivables from Directors or from firm / Private company where direcior is interested is Nii
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of { to 90 days.
Trade Receivables arc given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note-13(a)
Allowance for doubtful debts
The Company has provided allowance for doubtful debts based on the lifetime expected credit loss model using provision matrix.
Movement in allowance for doubtful debt :
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Laes Rs. in Lacs
Balance at the beginning of the year 284.26 92.24
Add : Allowance for the year 38.61 21041
Less : Write off of bad debts (net of recovery) 22.54 18.39
Balance at the end of the year 300.33 284.26
Write off

During the period, the company has made write offs of Rs. 22.54 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 18.39 Lacs) of trade receivables and

it does not expect to receive future cash flow or recoveries from collection of cash flow previously wrilten off.




7 (¢) Loans

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured , considered good unless otherwise stated
Non Current
Loans to
- Related parties (Refer Note 33) 7,500.00 -
Tatal Non current Loans 7,500.00 -
Current
Loans to
- Related parties (Refer Note 33) 477.16 5,366.37
- Others - 950.78
Total Current Loans 477,16 6,317.15
Total Loans 7,977.16 0,317.15
7 (d) Cash and cash equivalent
. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars .
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Balance with Bank

In Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 108.28 2.68
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 21.31
Cash on hand 0.71 0.05
Total cash and cash equivalents 108.99 24.04
7 {(e) Other bank balance
Particulars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than 12 months 10.84 13.83

Held as Margin Money*

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 14.72 10.24
Total other bank balances 25.56 24,07
‘Total cash and cash equivalents 134.55 43.11
* Under lien with bank as Security for Guarantee Facility
7 (f) Other financial assets

. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars . .
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Non-current
Share Application Money 2.29 -
Security deposits
From Others 15.17 14.51
17.46 14.51
Current

Earnest Money Deposit 50.76 12.90

Accrued Interest 0.46 0.17

Unbilled Revenue 38.30 -

Receivable other than trade - From Related Party 26,60 26.11

116.12 39.18
Total financial assets 133.58 53.69

Other current financial assets are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note-13(a)



7 (g) Financial assets by category

Rs. in Lacs

i . Cost FVTPL FYOCi Amertised cost
Particulars
March 31,2019
Investments
- Equity shares 145.86 - - -
Trade receivables - g - 9,902.80
Loans - - - 7,977.16
Cash & cash equivalents . - - - 134.55
Other financial assets - - - 133.58
Total Financial assets 145.86 - - 18,148.09
March 31, 2018
Investments
- Equity shares 136.42 - - -
Trade receivables - - - 12,190.65
Loans - - - 6,317.15
Cash & cash equivalents - - - 48.11
Other financial assets - - - 53.69
Total Financial assets ' 136.42 - - 18,609.60
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 36 and fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment are in
Note 37.
Note 8 : Other current / non-current assets
. As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars . .
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Current g
Advance to suppliers 642.42 2,092.01
Advance to employees for expenses 30.44 58.09
Sales tax/ VAT / Service tax receivable / GST (net) 808.52 849.99
Export incentive receivable 405.66 546.80
Prepaid expenses 39.71 4745
Total 1,926.75 3,594.94

Advance to Directors or to firm / Private company where director is interested -
Other current assets are given as security for borrewings as disclosed under Note-13(a)

Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

. As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
Parttculars . .
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Raw Materials
Raw Materials and components 88.87 69.47
Raw Material in transit - 6.49
Stock in trade 1,316.42 2,018.72
Stock in trade in transit “ 501.90
Finished goods 83.18 64.95
Total ‘ 1,488.47 2,661.53
Note : Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing and nel reaiisable value for Rs. 1.04 Lacs
{March, 2018 Rs.Nil). The changes in write downs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Inventories are hypothecated as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note 13(a)
Note 10 : Current Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Tax Paid in Advance (Net of Provision) - 301
3.11

Total R




Arvind Envisol Limited
CIN : U29100GJ2008PLC053226
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Equity share capital

. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018

Particulars )
No. of shares Rs. in Lacs No. of shares Rs. in Lacs

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00
Issued and subscribed share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 2,10,000 21.00 2,10,000 21.00
Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 2,10,000 21.00 2,10,000 21.00
Total 2,10,000 21.00 2,10,000 21.00

11.1, Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

. _ As af March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars . .
No. of shares Rs. in Lacs No. of shares Rs. in Lacs
At the beginning of the period 2,10,000 21.00 2,10,000 21.00
Add :
Shares issued during the year - - . -
Outstanding at the end of the period 2,10,000 21.00 2,10,000 21.00

11.2. Rights,Preferences and Restrictions attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder is
entitled to one vote per-share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company afier distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.

11.3. Shares held by Holding Company

A March 31, 201 Marech 31, 201

Name of the Shareholder s at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
No. of shares No. of shares

Holding Company - Arvind Limited 2,10,000 2,10,000

11.4. Details of shareholder{s) holding more than 5% Shares in the company

As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
N f the Sharehold ) <
ame ot the Shareholder ‘ No. of shares /6 of No. of shares /(t of
shareholding shareholding
Holding Company - Arvind Limited 2,10,000 100.00 2,10,000 160.00

11.5 Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 39,



Arvind Envisol Limited
CIN : U29100GJ2008PL.C053226
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 12 : Other Equity

Balance As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Note 12.1 Reserves & Surplus

Capital reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 49.65 49.65
Balance at the end of the year 49.65 49.65

General reserve
Balance as per last financial statements ' 1.00 1.00
Balance at the end of the year 1.00 1.06

Amalgamation Reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 3417 34,17
Balance at the end of the year 34.17 34,17

Securities premium account

Balance as per last financial statements 784.00 784.00
Add: received during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 784.00 784.00
Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements 2,493.84 521.85
Add: Profit for the year 4,770.16 1,971.09
Add / (Less); OCI for the year (15.43) ’ 090
Balance at the end of the year 7,248.55 2,493.84
Total reserves & surplus 8,117.37 3,362.66
Total Other equity 8,117.37 3.362.66

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows :

a. Securities premium account
Securities premium reserve is created due to premium on issue of shares. These reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions

of the Companies, Act.
b. General reserve
General Reserve is a free reserve created by the Company by transfer from Retained earnings for appropriation purposes,

¢, Amalgamation reserve
The reserve was created pursuant to scheme of amalgamation in earlier years. Amalgamation Reserve is a reserve which arose
pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation and shall not be considered to be a reserve created by the Company.



Arvind Envisol Limited

CIN : U29100GJ2008P1.C053226
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 13 : Financial liabilities

13 (a) Long-term Borrowings

. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars . .
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Long-term Borrowings (refer note (a) to (b) below)
Non-current portion
Secured '
Term loan from Banks 37.74 51.14
37.74 51.14
Current maturifies
Secured
Term loan from Banks 13.42 12.32
13.42 12.32
Total long-term borrowings 51.16 63.46
Short-term Borrowings (refer note {¢) & (d) below)
Secured :
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from Banks 1,300.08 2,000.00
Unsecured ‘
Under Buyer's Credit Arrangement 575.65 1,442.18
Intercorporate Deposits
From Related Parties - 3,866.53
Total short-term borrowings- 1,875.73 7,308.71
Total borrowings 1,926.89 7,372.17

Nature of security:
Term loan of Rs. 51.16 Lacs
a Loans of Rs. 51.16 Lacs are secured by hypothecation of related vehicles.

b Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment

Particulars Rs. in Lacs Range of Terms of Repayment from Balance sheet date
Interest (%)
From Banks
Hire Purchase Loan 51.16] 8.45%to |Monthly payment of Equated Monthly Instalments
9.65%  tbeginning from the month subsequent to taking the
loans

¢ Nature of Security
Cash Credit and Other Facilities from Banks
Exclusive charge on the entire current assets of the company present and future and goods procured under LC,

d Rate of Interest
i. Working Capital Loans from banks carry interest rates ranging from 9.10% per annum.
ii. Inter Corporate Deposit carries interest rate of 8.75% per-annum.
iv. Buyer's credit arrangements carry interest rates ranging from.3.20% to 3.43% per annum.
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13 (b) Trade payable
. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018
Particulars .
Rs, in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Current
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterrpises
(Refer note below) .
Others 6,459.38 9,130.10
Total 6,459.38 9,130.10

The Company has not received any intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 and hence disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding:

(a) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of accounting year;

(b) Interest paid during the year,

(¢} Amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year;

{d) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment;

(e) Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting vear; and

(f) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date.

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise.

have not been given, The Company is making efforts to get the confirmations from the suppliers as regard to their status
under the said Act.

13 () Other financial liabilities

. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars . .
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Non-current
Financial guarantee contract - 2.03
- 2.03
Current
Current maturity of long term borrowings 13.42 12.32
Interest accrued and due 1,225.63 -
Interest accrued but not due 2.21 4.32
Financial guarantee contract 7.86 3.63
Deferred Revenue 1,030.47 2,115,014
Payable to employees 141.22 149.15
Deposit from employees 0.15 0.15
2,420.96 2,284.58
Total 2,420.96 2,286.61

Financial guarantee contract
The Company has given the financial guarantee to Banks on behalf of Subsidiary.



Arvind Envisol Limited

CIN : U29100GJ2008PLC053226
Notes to the Financial Statements

13 (d) Financial liabilities by category

Rs. in Lacs

Particulars FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
March 31, 2019

Borrowings - - 1,926.89
Trade payable - - 6,459.38
Financial guarantee 7.86 - -

" Hnterest accrued. but not due - - 221
Payable to employees - - 141.22
Deposit from employees - - 0.15

. |Total Financial liabilities 7.86 - 8,529.85
March 31,2018
Borrowings - - 7,372.17
Trade payable - - 9,130.10
Payablé to employees - - 149.15
Financial guarantee 5.66 - -
Interest accrued but not due - - 432
Deposit from employees - - 0.15
Total Financial liabilities 5.66 - #REF!

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 38.
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 36 and fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment are

in Note 37.

Note 14 : Provisions

o, As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
Particulars . .
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Long-term
Provision for employee benefits (refer Note 32)
Provision for leave encashment 58.61 24.60
58.61 24.60
Short-term
Provision for employee benefits (refer Note 32)
Provision for leave encashment 5.42 1.28
Provision for gratuity 0.34 35.58
5.76 36.86
Total 64.37 61.46
Note 15 : Other current/ Non-current liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Current
Advance from customers 2,399.03 3,399.43
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at [89.73 85.00
source
Other liabilities 2.53 i.10
Total 2,591.29 3,485.53
Note 16 : Other current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
! : Rs. in Lacs Rs, in Lacs
For Taxation (Net of Advance Tax) 957.56 -
Total 957.56 -
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Note 17 : Reventue from operations

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Laes
Sale of products 23,092.78 13,678.69
Sale of services 2,712.64 928.62
Other Operating income
Export incentives 500:70 304.57
Exchange rate gain 306.29 239.78
Other Operating Income 36.37 3.72
Total Other Operating Income 843.36 548.07
Total 26,648.78 17,155.38

Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with castomers

Revenue based on Geography

Tarch 31,2018

. Domestic 8,597.58
Export 15,518.32 8,557.80
Revenue from Qperations 26,648.78 17,155.38

Revenue based on business segment

‘March:31;2018
Manufacturing and trading of Components and 26,648.78 17,155.38
Equipments and other related consumables

Revenue from Qperations 26,648.78 17,155.38

Reconciliation of revenue from operation with contract price

Yeéar ende
arch 31,2019 arch:31;2018
Revenue from contract with customers as-per the contract price 26,657.69 17,155.38

Adjustment made to contract price on account of:

a) Discounts and Rebates - -

b) Excise dutyon sale of goods - -

¢) Sales Return 8.91 -

d) Bonus / incentive - -

¢) Customer loyalty programme - -
Revenue from Operations 26,648.78 17,155.38

Note 18 ; Other income.

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Rs. in Lacs . Rs. in Laes
Interest income 1,894.51 117.12
Financial guarantee commission 11.38 2.01
Exchange difference (Net) - 46.79
Sundry credit balances written back - 5.63
Miscellaneous income 34.88 49.29

Total 1,940.77 220.34
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CIN : U29100GJ2008PL.C0O53226

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 19 : Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Stock at the beginning of the year 69.47 143.90
Add : Purchases 126.74 103.90
196.21 247.80
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 88.87 69.47
Raw materials and components consumed 107.34 178.33
Total 107.34 178.33
Note 20 : Purchases of stock-in-trade
2018- -
Particnlars ‘018 v 2,017 18
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Purchase of stock in trade 11,586.84 10,318.40
Total 11,586.84 10,318.40
Note 21 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
2018-19 2017-18
rticul
Particulars Rs. in Laes Rs. in Lacs
Stock at the end of the year
Stock in trade 1,316.42 2,018.72
Finished Goods . 83.18 . 64.95
1,399.60 2,083.67
Stock at the beginning of the year
Stock in trade 2,018.72 546.92
Finished Goods 64.95 -
2,083.67 546.92
(Increase) / Decrease in stocks 684.07 (1,536.75)
Total . 684.07 (1,536.75)
Note 22 : Employee benefits expense
‘ 2018-19 2017-18
. Parti
articulars Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. (Refer Note 32) 3,646.63 2,935.22
Contribution to provident and other funds 79.69 64.26
Welfare and training expenses 60.77 2276

Total 3,787.09 3,022.24




Arvind Envisol Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 23 : Finance costs

Partictlars 2018-19 2017-18
Rs, in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Interest Expense
-~ Loans 1,570.28 279.62
- Others 6.88 42.49
Teotal 1,577.16 32211
Note 24 : Depreciation and amortization expense
: 2018-19 2017-18
Particulars Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Depreciation on Property,Plant & Equipment (Refer Note 5) 45.36 43.45
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 126.77 127.35
Total 172.13 170.80
Note 25 : Other expenses
. 2018-19 2017-18
Particulars . .
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Power and Fucl 317 2. H4
Stores consumed 1437 13.87
Insurance 16.34 372
Operation & Management Expenses 449.96 20042
Patent Related Expenses 2575 28.67
Printing, stationery & comumunication 15.78 1537
Commissicn, Brokerage & discount 5.53 1.15
Rent (Note 31) 65.64 3597
Rates and taxes 7.20 2626
Repairs ;
To Machineries {including spares consumption) - -
To others 5.19 7.75
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 1,468.83 68.80
Excise duty expense - 4.46
Legal & Professional charges 113.96 5532
Conveyance & Travelling expense 525.80 26529
Advertisement and publicity 23.72 14.52
Miscellaneous Labour charges 5.64 a47
Auditor's remuneration (Refer Note below) 7.79 4.17
Other Selling and Distribution Expenses 0.40 0.72
Bank charges 52.15 3254
Security charges 773 2.84
Allowance for doubtful debts 3861 21041
Sundry Debits Written Off (Net) 2330 -
Penalty 116 0.69
Liquidated Damages - 0.32
Spend on CSR activities (Note 35) 46.00 26.00
Donation 50.00 30025
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment/Intangible assets 2.64 6.57
Property, Plant & Equipment written Off - 1.47
Exchange rale Loss 153.47 -
Miscettaneous expenses 66.02 24.01
Total 3,200.15 1,363.17
Payment to Auditors
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Payment to Auditors as
Auditors 4.00 4.00
In Other Capacity 3.79 0.17
Total 7.79 4.17
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Note 26 : Tncome tax

The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are -

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Current iIncome tax 1,981.93 1,113.04
Excess MAT Credit reversal for carlier years 39.55 62.26
Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense (117.64) 97.94
Income tax expense reperted in the statement of profit and loss 1,903.84 1,273.24
OCI section
. 2018-19 2617-18
Particul
artiewiars Rs, in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Statement te Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses 6.35 (0.48)
Deferred tax charged to OCI 6.35 (0.48)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

A) Current tax

2018-19 2017-18

rticul

Particulars Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 6,674.00 3,244.33
Tax @ 29.12% (March 31, 2018: 34.608%) 194347 1,122.80
Adjustment
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpeses (17.80) 039
Expenditure allowable on payment basis {8.53) 10.37
Expenditure allowable over the peried (Section 350 /.35DD) {5.15) 3.47
Unused losses available for offsetting against future taxable income - -
In respect of eurrent income tax of previous year 35.55 62.26
QOther adjustments 47.70) 73.95
At the effective income tax rate of 28.53% (March-31, 2018 : 39.25%) iy 1,903.84 1,273.24

B) Deferred tax

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018  March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Hs, in Lacs Ks. in Lacs Hs. in Lacs Hs. in Lacs
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (69.40) (107.36) (37.96) (19.49)
Others 725 - {(72.51) -
Expenditure allowable on payment basis [9.42 10.04 (9.38) 334
Expenditure allowable over the period (Section 3513/ 35DD) 1.33 (2:81) (4.14) 4.67
Unused losses available for offsetting against future taxable income - - - 109.90
Deferred tax expense/{income) (123.99) 98.42
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities} 23.86 (100.13)
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
Deferred tax assets 93.26 10.04
Deferred tax liahilitics (69.40) (110.17)
Deferred tax Habilities {net) 23.86 (100.13)

March 31,2019  March 31, 2018

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Opening balance as of Aprif 1 {100.13) 60.55
Tax income/{expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 78.09 (160.20}
Tax income/{expense)} during the peried recognised in OCI 6.35 (0.48)
Ciesing balance as at March 31 (100.13)

(15.69)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only #f it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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Note 27 : Contingent liabilities

Rsin Lacs
Particulars sz Year'ended March 31,2019 - o5 Year ended March 31,2018
Contingent lighilities not provided for
Guarantees given by bank on behalf of the Company 6,274.35 13504.05

Notes =

Provident Fund

The Honourabte Supreme Court, has passed a decision on 28th February, 2019 in relation 1o inclusion of certain allowances
within the scope of “Basic wages” for the purpose-of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees’
Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The Comipany, based on legal advice, is awaiting further
clarifications in this matter in order to reasonably assess the impact on its financial statements, if any. Accordingly, the
applicability of the judgement to the Company, with respect to the period and the nature of allowances to be covered, and
resultant impact on the past provident fund liability, cannot be reasonably ascertained, at present.

~ Note 28 : Capital commitment and other commitments
Rs in Lacs

‘Year ended Marchi 31,2018

Year ended Maich 31,2019

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on - _ -
capital account and not provided for

Other commitments -

Note 29 : Foreign Exchange Exposures not hedged.

arended Marchi 31,2018

s.inLacs
Receivables uspD 8.21 5,679.76 17.72 11,546.81
EUR 0.00 037
BIR 97.53 2,361,135
Payable towards borrowings uspb 0.84 577.86 221 1,442.18
(Including Interest accrued but not
due thercon)
Payable to creditors usD 0.97 674.20 4.27 2,780.02
EUR 0.01 8.05 0.12 96.93

Note 30 : Segment Reporting

a. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Components and Equipments and
other related consumables, which in the context of Indian Accounting Standard 108 on Segment Reporting, constitutes a
single reportable primary (business) segment,

b. Geographical segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.

Segment Revenue*

a) In India 11,130.46 8,597.58
b} Rest of the world 15,518.32 8,557.80
Total Sales 26,648.78 17,155.38

Carrying Cost of Segment Assets®*

-a) In India 16,865.64 14,260.53
b) Rest of the world 5,679.76 11,546.81
Total 22,545.40 25,807.34

Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**@
a) In India 812.37 801.74

b} Rest of the world - -
Total 812.37 801.74




Arvind Envisol Limited
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* Based on location of Customers
** Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets, Investments accounted for using equity method and deferred tax asset.

Note:-

c. Information about majer customers:

Considering the nature of business of company in which it operates, the company deals with various customers including
multiple geographics. There are three (3) customers together contributing Rs. 16,198.04 Lacs (March 31, 2018 : 2 customers s
Rs. 8,285.87 Lacs)of the total revenue of the company from export sales.

Note 31 : Lease Rent

Operating Lease

The Company has taken various office premises under operating lease or leave and license Agreements, These are
generally cancellable, having a term of 11 months and have no specific obligation for renewal. Payments are recognised

in the Statement of Profit and Loss under 'Rent’ in Note 25.

The particulars of these leases are as follows: Rs in Lacs

Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Eoss 65.64 35.97
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The prlmlpal assumptlons used in determmmg ahove defined benefit obllgatlons for the Company’s plans are shown below:
: . ' 1315 Year ended March 31 2 ' 8

Discount rate 7.47% 7.86%
Future salary increase 6.00% 4.00%
Medical cost inflation 0.00% 0.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%
Attrition rate 7.00% 2.00%
Indian assured lives Mortality(2006-  Indian assured lives Mortality(2006-
Morality rate during employment 08) 08)
Morality rate after employment N.A. N.A.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Gratuity

Gratuity
Discount rate 1% increase (5.57) {3.98)
1% decrease 6.41 4.72
Salary increase 1% increase 6.45 4.86
1% decrease (5.69) {4.15)
Attrition rate 1% increase (0.18) 1.16
) 1% decrease 0.10 (1.41)

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the deﬁned benef t plan

Gratuity
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 295 0.70
Between 2 and 5 years 22.34 6.41
Beyond 5 years ' 34.41 18.60
' 59.70 25.72
Total expected payments 55.70 25.72

Welghted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash ﬂows)

Gratuity iO - 1 8 .

. Other Long term employee benefit plans
Leave encashment.
Amount of Rs. 38.16 Lacs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 14.07 Lacs) is recognised as expenses and included in Note No. 22 "Employee ber
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a

Note 33 : Disclosure pursuant {o Related -Party

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures” (IND AS 24), the related parties of the Company are as fallows :

Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

Wk -

- -

Arvnd Limited
Arvind Envisol PLC - Ethiopra
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

The Anup Engineering Limited
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

Arvind Sroart Textiles Private Limited

Arvind Goodhill Suits Manufacturing, Private Limited
Arvind Smartspaces Limited .

Arand Lifestyle Apparel

Holding Company

1Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary (Upto 29th-November, 201 8) & Company
under the control of Kev Manapetial Personnel (From 30th
November. 2018)

Fellow Subsidtary {Unto 29th November, 2018} & Company
under the contral of Key Managerial Personnel {From 30th
November, 2018}

Fellow Subsidiary (Ipto 29th November, 2018) & Company
under the conirol of Key Managerial Persennel (Fromy30th

November, 2018)
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Company under the centrol of Key Manacerial Personnel

Fellow Subsidiary

=

Note: Related party refationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors,

Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transaetions :

Nature of Transactions Yearended
Maveh 31, 2012 March 31,2018
Purchases,
Goods and Materials
Arvind Eimited 19570 48.81
Sales
Services
Arvind Limited - 73.36
Stock in trade
Arvind Limited 1.071.98 482,50
Arvind Smarispaces Limited 2.00 50.57
Arvind Envisel PLC - Ethiopia 147.04 -
Arvind Smart Textiles Private Limited 3722 -
The Anup Engineering Limited . 10.77
MEIS License
Arvind Limited 159.88 -
Arvind OG Nomwoven Pvt Lid 6.96 -
Expenses
Interest Expense
Arvind Limited 136181 242.78
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited - LA
The Anup Engineering Limited - -
Manpower services
Arvind Limited 1,814,986 1,200.00
Income
Manpower services
The Anup Engineering Limited 75.70 -
Arvind Limited - 62.24
nterest Income
Arvind Limited 3.60 -
Azvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 1,558.00 1598
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited 222.27 -
Arvingd Goodhill Suits Manufacturing Private Limited 12.58 232
Guarartee commission Income
Arvind Envisol PLC - Ethiopia 11.38 2.01
Loan. Given/(Repaid)
Arvind Limited 1,54,353.30 21.942.32
Anvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 91,450.17 23,103,98
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Linuted 15,576.96 3,557.40
Arvind Goodhill Suits Manufacturing Private Limited £,649.75 1.336.00
Term Loan Given
Arvind Liired 7.500.00 -
Loan Taken/{Received back)
Arvind Limited 1,50.488.77 25,363.97
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 98,201 99 5.760.36
Arvind Beauty Brands Retai! Private Limited 15,791.67 357813
Arvind Goodhill Suits Manufacturing Private Lirmited 818600 1,130.00
Investments made
Arvind Envisol PLC - Ethiopia 11.73 13413
Arvind Smart Textiles Private Limited - .00
Investments sold
Arvind Limited - L.o0
Share Application Money
Arvind Enwisol PLC - Ethiopia - 2.29
Qutstanding :
Rereivable in respect of Current Assels
Arvind Eimited 30055 83.78
Arvind Smarispaces Limnited 236 .
The Anup Engingering Limited 146,19 -
Arvind Smart Textiles Private Limited 2892 -
Arvind OG Nonwoven Pvi Lid 6.95 .
Arvitd Envisol PLC - Ethiopia 206.51 2611
Receivable in respect of Loans
Arvind Limited 7.500.00 -
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited - 5.349.61
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limitsd - 14.67
Arvind Goodhill Suits Manufacturing Private Eimited 47716 2.0%
Pavable in respect of Loans
Arvind Limited - 3,866.53
Payahle in respect of Current Liabilities
Arvind Smart Textiles Private Limited 165.00 -
Arvind Lifestyle Apparel 206.22 -
Arvind Envisol PLC - Ethiopia 253.34 -
Arvind Limited 2,518.93 1.390.58
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Arvind Envisol Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 34 : Earning per share

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Earing per share (Basic and Diluted)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 4,770.16 1,971.09
Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year 2,10,000 2,106,600
Weighted average number of equity shares
For basic EPS 2,10,000 2,190,600
For diluted EPS 2,10,000 2,10,000
WNominal value of equity shares 10 10
Basic earning per share 2,271.50 638.61
Diluted earning per-share 2,271.50 938.61
Weighted average number of equity shares
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 2,10,000 2,10,000
Effect of dilution: Share options - -
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 2,10,000 2,10.000
Note 35 : Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities:
a. The Company is required to spend Rs. 46.00 Lacs ; (March 31, 2018 :26.00 Lacs) on CSR activities.
b. Amount spent during the year on: Rs in Lacs
Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
In cash ‘{ﬂ.m be Total In cash \fet.to be Total
paid in cash paid in cash
(i) |Construction/acquisition of any asset . - - - - -
(ii} |Contribution to various Trusts / NGOs / Societies / 46.00 - 46.00 26.00 - 26.00
Agencies and utilization thereon
(iii} |Expenditure or Administrative Overheads for CSR - - - - -




Avvind Envisol Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 36 : Fair value disclosures for financial assefs and financial Jiabilities

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximatious of fair values:

AT Rabr valipe it
arch 315 Ag'at March 31,

Financial asscts

Investinents measured at amortized cost 145.86 136,42 145.85 136.42
Tatal 145.86 136.42 145.86 136.42
Financial {iabilities

Borrowings 1,926.89 7.372.17 1,926 89 7,372.17
Total 1,926.89 7,372.17 1,926.89 7,372.17

N +

The management assessed that the fair vatues of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial assets, trade payables and other current financial
ltabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to-the shart-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabitities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a curent transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
tiquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of borrowings and other financial liabilities is cafeulated by discounting fiture cash flows using rates currently available for debts on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Company has determined that market participants would take into account vwhen priciag the investments.

Note 37 ; Fair value hierarchy .
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's lizbilities

ive disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial liabilities as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018
air.value measurvemént g

Quantitat

As at March 31, 2.0I9
Liabilitics disclosed -at fair value .
Borrowings - March 31, 2019 1,926.89 - 1,926.89 -

As at March 31, 2018
Liabilities disclosed at fair value
Borrowings March 31, 2019 737217 . - 737217 -




(a

—

Arvind Envisol Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 38 : Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial fiabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings and rade & other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include Invessments, loans given, trade and other receivables and cash & short-term deposits that derive directly
from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the company, derivative financiat instruments,
such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign cwrrency option coatracts are -entered to hedge certain foreign currency exposures and interest rate swaps to hedge certain variable interest rate
exposures. Derivatives are used exciusively for hedging purposes and noi as trading / speculative instruments.

The Comipany's risk management is carried out by a Treasury department under policies approved by the Board. of directors: Company's treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financiat risks in
close co-operation with the Company's operating units, The board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchanpe risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity:

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fisture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becausc of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,
cutrency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, Investments, trade and other receivables,

trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments,

Within the various methodologies to analyse and manage risk, Company has implemented a system based on “'sensitivily analysis” on symmetric basis. This tool enables the risk manapers 1o identify
the risk position of the entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate quantification of the exposure in the event that certain specified parameters were to be met under a specific set of
assumplions. The risk estimates provided” here assurme: .

- a parattet shift of 50-basis points of the interest rate yield curves in afl- currencies,
- a simultaneous, parallel foreign exchange rates shift in whicl the INR. appreciates / depreciates against all currencies by 2%
- 10% increase / decrease in equity prices of all investments traded in an active market; which are classified as financial asset measured at FVOCI.

‘The potential economic impact, due to these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects estimated changes resulting from the seusitivity analysis.
Actual results that are included in the Staterent of profit & loss may differ materially from these estimates due 1o actual developments in the giobal financial markets.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables oa: the carrying values of gratuity, pension and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed chanpes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities hetd at

March 31, 2419 and March 31, 2018,
- The sensitivity of equity is calcutated by considering the effect of any asscciated cash flow hedges as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 for the effects of the assumed changes of the underlying

risk

Interest rafe risk
Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities to changes in market rates of interest. The Company has not hedged its intcrest rate risk.

As at March 31, 2019, approximately 32.53% of the Company’s Borrowings are at fixed rate of interest (March 31, 2018 : 72.01%)

interest rate sensitivity
The following able demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change-in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other

variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: -

Rs. in Lacs

March 31,2019
Increase in 50 basis points (6.50) (6.50)
Decrease in 50 basis points 6,50 6.50
March 31,2018 .
[nerease in 50 basis points (10.32) (29.16)
10:32 29.16

Dectease in 50 basis points

Exclusion from this analysis are as follows:
- Fixed rate financial instruments measured at cost : Since a change in interest rate would not change the carrying amount of this category of instruments, there is nio net income impact and they are

excluded from this analysis
- The effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis,

Foreign carrency risk )
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becanse of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company transacts business in local currency

and in foreign currency, primarily in USD. The Company has foreign currency trade payables and receivables ete. and is, therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk.
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Arvind Envisol Limited
Notes to the Firancial Statements

Foreipn currency sensttivity
The foilowing tahles demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR rates to the functional currency of respective entity, with ail other variables helé constant. The

Company’s exposure fo foreign currency changes for zll other currencies is not material, The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and pre-tax equity is due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liahifities.

Rs. in Lacs

“Effect oo profit beforetax Effect on prefax .

L equily s
March 31, 2019 2% 138.64 138.64
2% (138.64) (138.64}
‘March 31, 2018 +2% 146.49 146.49
-2% (146.49) (146.49)

Rs, in Lacs

March 31, 2019 +2% 0.17 0.17
2% (0.17) (©.17)

March 31, 2018 2% (1.94) (1.94)
2% 1.94 1.94

March 31,2019 2% 47,22 47.22
’ 2% (47.22) (47.22)
March 31,2018 +2% (1.94) {1.94)
-2% 1,94 1.94

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financiaf loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
aperating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and contral relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are nen-

interest bearing and are generally on 30 days credit term. Credit limits arc established for all customers based on internal rating criteria. Qutstanding customer rocéivables are regularly monitored and
any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit. The Company has ne concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and

geographically.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and
assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incutred historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting. date is the canying value of each <lass of
financial assets disclosed in Note 7. The Company does not hold coblateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect 1o trade receivables as low, as its customers are
Iocated in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Financial instrnments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with baiks and financial institutions is managed'by the Company’s treasusy department in accordance with'the Company’s policy. Iivestments of surplus funds are made
only with approved counterparties who meets the minimum theeshold requirements under the counterparty tisk assessment process. The Company monitors the ratings, credit spreads and financial
strength of its counterparties. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the group adjusts its exposure to various counierparties. ‘Fhe Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the Balance sheet as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 36,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and futire cash and collateral obligations without incurring unaceéptable [ogses. The Company's objective is to, at afl
times maintain optimum levels of liguidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company clescly monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash manapement system. It
maintains adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from domestic banks at an optimised cost. It alsa enjoys strong access to domestic capital markets across equity.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

{Amount in Rs.)

Year ended March 31, 2019

Interest bearing borrowings* ' 1,892.99 3324 8.78 - 1,935.00
Trade payables 6,459.38 " - - 6,459.38
Other financial liabiiities# 2.407.34 - - - 2,407.54
10,759.91 33.24 8.78 - 10,801.92
Year ended March 31, 2018
Interest bearing borrowings* 7,325.97 3324 24.75 - 738396
Trade payables 9,130.1¢ - - - 4,130.10
Other financial liabilities# 2.274.29 2.03 - - 227632
18,730.36 35.27 24.75 - 18,790.38

* Includes contractual interest payment based on interest rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period over the tenor of the borrowings.
# Other financial lHabilities includes interest accrued but not due of Rs, 2.21 Lacs (March 31, 2018 : Rs, 4,32 Lacs). Current maturity of long-term borrowings is included in intesest bearing borrowing

part iffabove note.



Arvind Envisol Limited
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Note 39 : Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and alt other equity reserves atiributable to the-equity holders of the Company. The primary cbjective of
the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratics in order to support its busiess and maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the-dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, whiclyis net debt divided by totat
capital plus net debt. The Company includes-within net debs, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short-tenn deposits (including other bank balance).

(Amount in Rs.}
ear erided March:31,2018

Interést-bearing loans and borrowings 1.926.89 7372.17

(Note 13)

Less: cash and cash equivalent (134.55) (48.11)
(including other bank balance) (Note

7)

Net debt 1,792.34 , 7.324.06

Equity share capital (Note 11) 21.00 21,00

Other equity {Note 12} 8,117.37 3,362.66

Total capital 8,138.37 3,383.06

Capitzl and net debt 9,930.71 10,707.72

Gearing ratio 18.05% 68.40%%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims.to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loaas and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years.ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

Loan covenan(s
Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company has complied with the required financial covenants through out the reporting periods.



Arvind Envisol Limited
Noties to the Financial Statements

Note 40 : Disclosure in respect of Construction / Job work Contracts

Rs. in Lacs

Year ended
Particulars 3t-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Amount of Contract Revenue Recognized During the Year 19.223.56 11,217.11
Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period )
Cantract cost incurred and recognised profits less recognised losses 18,294.86 16,110,56
Less: Progress Billings 18,256.56 10,1190.56
Unbilled Revenue 38,30 Lo
Recognized and included in the financial statements as amounts due:
-from customers under construction contracts - -
-to customers under construction contracts - -
Amount of Advance Received from Customers 2,399.03 3,399.43
Amount of Retention from Customers - -

Note 41 : Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS.116 - Leases

On 30th March 2019, the Minisiry of Corporate Affaiss (MCA) has notified Iné AS. 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which-is applicable with effect from Ist April, 2019.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties
to a contract i e., the fessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting mode] for lessee and requires
the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless
the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of profit and
loss. Iid AS 116 substantially carries forward the [essor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

As per Ind AS {16, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities
in the statement of profit and loss. The lease payments made by the fessee under the lease arrangement will be adjusted
against the leass liabilities, The Company is currently evaluating the impact on account of implementation of Ind AS [16
which might not have significant impact on key profit & loss and balance sheet ratio i.e. Eamings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amostisation {EBITIDA), Asset coverage, debt equity, inlerest coverage, etc.

Note 42 : Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified
Figures of the earlier year have been regrouped or reclassified to conform with those of current year.




